
Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

Page 1 

Meeting 
of the 

Iron Range Resources Board 
 
 

Wednesday, July 16, 2008 
10:00 a.m. 

Iron Range Resources  
Eveleth, MN 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

Page 2 

MEETING OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES BOARD 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

10:00 a.m. 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
AGENDA ...................................................................................................................................................................... 3 
APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 19, 2008, MINUTES .................................................................................................. 4 
FY09 AGENCY INVESTMENT PLAN .................................................................................................................... 8 
TACONITE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND .............................................................................................. 9 

NORTHSHORE MINING COMPANY ............................................................................................................................ 10 
HIBBING TACONITE COMPANY ................................................................................................................................ 11 

 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

Page 3 

MEETING OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES BOARD 
Iron Range Resources 

Eveleth, Minnesota 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 – 10:00 a.m. 

 
Agenda 

 
1) Roll Call 
 
2) Approval of the June 19, 2008, Minutes 
 
3) Commissioner’s Comments 
 
4) FY09 Agency Investment Plan 

Action required:  Approval requires 8 votes 
 
5) Taconite Economic Development Fund 

Action required:  Project approval requires a majority vote of the quorum present 
 

a) Northshore Mining Company 
b) Hibbing Taconite Company 

 
6) Other 
 
7) Adjournment 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

Page 4 

Approval of the June 19, 2008, Minutes 
 

Meeting of the 
Iron Range Resources Board 

 
Thursday, June 19, 2008 

5:00 p.m. 
Iron Range Resources  

Eveleth, Minnesota 
 

I. Roll Call 
 
Representative David Dill, Chair, called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00 p.m.  
Present:  Representative Tom Anzelc, Representative Tom Rukavina, Representative Tony 
Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, Senator Tom Saxhaug, Senator Rod Skoe, Senator David 
Tomassoni, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Citizen Joe Begich and Citizen Jack Ryan.  Absent:  
Senator Tom Bakk and Citizen Shelley Robinson.  Also present:  Sandy Layman, Commissioner; 
Brian Hiti, Deputy Commissioner; Doug Gregor, Assistant Attorney General; Matt Sjoberg, 
Development Strategies Director; Roy Smith, Workforce Development Coordinator; Dan Jordan, 
Mining Program Supervisor; Dave Hart, Loan Officer Supervisor; Rick Anderson, Loan Officer 
Sr.; Richard Walsh, Community Development Representative; Jean Dolensek, Chief Financial 
Officer; Marianne Bouska, Strategic Results Manager; Linda Johnson, Giants Ridge® Golf & 
Ski Resort Director; Jim Plummer, Real Property and Laurentian Vision Partnership 
Coordinator; Sheryl Kochevar, Communications & Media Coordinator; Laureen Hall, Executive 
Assistant; Kim Anderson, Executive Assistant; Larry Lehtinen, Chairman of the Board & CEO, 
Magnetation, Inc. (MI); Ed Shaughnessy, Director, MI; Tom Hammerlund, Director; MI 
 
II. Approval of the May 21, 2008, Minutes 
 
Senator David Tomassoni moved approval of the May 21, 2008, minutes.  Seconded by 
Representative Tony Sertich.  Motion carried. 
 
III. Iron Range Higher Education Committee Appointments 

Action Required:  Pursuant to law, four members appointed by the Chair 
 

Pursuant to Section 4. Minnesota Statutes 2006, Section 298.2214, subdivision 2 (3), as amended 
in Minnesota Statutes 2008, Chairman Dill appointed the following four Iron Range Resources 
Board members to the Iron Range Higher Education Committee:  Representative Tom Rukavina, 
Senator Tom Bakk, Senator David Tomassoni and Representative Loren Solberg. 
 
IV. Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund 

Action required:  Project approval requires 8 votes  
 

a. Magnetation, Inc. 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

Page 5 

Motion by Representative Tom Anzelc to approve the Magnetation Inc. project, which will 
recover iron particles from existing natural iron ore and taconite tailings basins, as presented, for 
an amount not to exceed $2,000,000.  Seconded by Senator Tom Saxhaug.  Motion carried. 
 
Voting in Favor of the Motion:  Representative Tom Anzelc, Representative David Dill, 
Representative Tom Rukavina, Representative Tony Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, 
Senator Tom Saxhaug, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator Rod Skoe, Senator David 
Tomassoni, Citizen Joe Begich, and Citizen Jack Ryan. 
 
Voting Against the Motion:  None 
 
Abstain:  None 
 
Absent: Senator Tom Bakk and Citizen Shelley Robinson  
 
V. Taconite Economic Development Fund (TEDF) 

Action required:  project approval requires a majority vote of the quorum present 
 

a. Northshore Mining Company – Resolution No. 08-019 
b. Hibbing Taconite Company – Resolution No. 08-020  
 

Motion by Senator Tom Saxhaug to reconsider the Northshore Mining Company project, as 
presented in Resolution No. 08-019, and the Hibbing Taconite Company project, as presented in 
Resolution No. 08-020, that had been moved by Senator Tom Bakk to reject the projects at the 
May 21, 2008, meeting of the Iron Range Resources Board and that the funds should be 
redirected to the Taconite Environmental Protection Fund as directed by statute; and that money 
should be redirected before the end of the fiscal year.  [The Bakk motion was approved on May 
21, 2008.]  Seconded by Representative Tony Sertich.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Representative Tom Rukavina to table the motion until Senator Tom Bakk could be 
present at the meeting and a part of the discussion.  Motion carried. 
 
Voting in Favor of the Motion:  Representative Tom Anzelc, Representative David Dill, 
Representative Tom Rukavina, Representative Tony Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, 
Senator Tom Saxhaug, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator Rod Skoe, Senator David 
Tomassoni, Citizen Joe Begich and Citizen Jack Ryan. 
 
Voting Against the Motion:  None 
 
Abstain:  None 
 
Absent:  Senator Tom Bakk and Citizen Shelley Robinson 
 
VI. Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Fund Investment Policy 

Action required:  Project approval requires a majority vote of the quorum present 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

Page 6 

Motion by Citizen Jack Ryan to approve the Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Fund 
Investment Policy as presented.  Seconded by Representative Tom Rukavina.  Motion carried. 
 
Voting in Favor of the Motion:  Representative Tom Anzelc, Representative David Dill, 
Representative Tom Rukavina, Representative Tony Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, 
Senator Tom Saxhaug, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator Rod Skoe, Senator David 
Tomassoni, Citizen Joe Begich and Citizen Jack Ryan. 
 
Voting Against the Motion:  None 
 
Abstain:  None 
 
Absent:  Senator Tom Bakk and Citizen Shelley Robinson 
 
VII. FY09 Agency Investment Plan 

Action required:  Approval requires 8 votes 
 
Motion by Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon to approve the FY09 Agency Investment Plan as 
presented.  Seconded by Representative Loren Solberg.  Motion by Representative Rukavina to 
amend the Prettner Solon amendment, as follows: 
 

• Marketing & Communications 
o Reduce the amount proposed in the FY09 Agency Investment Plan from 

$1,322,817 to 968,000 (Page 11) 
• Business Development & Recruitment  

o Reduce the amount proposed in the FY09 Agency Investment Plan from 
$1,147,104 to $900,000 (Page 18) 

• Community Readiness 
o Reduce the amount proposed in the FY09 Agency Investment Plan from 

$1,100,000 to $750,000 [Range Readiness] (Page 23) 
• Mining and Mineland Reclamation 

o Reduce the amount proposed in the FY09 Agency Investment Plan from $900,000 
to $800,000 [Laurentian Vision Partnership Grant] (Page 23) 

• Commissioner Projects 
o Reduce the amount proposed in the FY09 Agency Investment Plan from $500,000 

to $250,000 (Page 23) 
• Innovative Technology 

o Reduce the amount proposed in the FY09 Agency Investment Plan from $200,000 
to $0 (Page 23) 

• Renewable Energy 
o Reduce the amount proposed in the FY09 Agency Investment Plan from 

$1,000,000 to $500,000 (Page 25) 
 
Chairman Dill recessed the meeting to allow the Rukavina amendment to be transcribed and 
presented for the Board’s review.  Meeting was recessed at 6:20 p.m. 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

Page 7 

Chairman Dill called the meeting back to order at 6:55 p.m.  However, due to a family 
emergency of one of the Board members, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
VIII. Adjournment  
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

Page 8 

FY09 Agency Investment Plan 
Action Required:  Approval requires 8 votes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please see enclosed FY09 Investment Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

Page 9 

Taconite Economic Development Fund 
Action required:  Project approval requires a majority vote of the quorum present 

 
 

a) Northshore Mining Company 
 

b) Hibbing Taconite Company 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

Page 10 

Northshore Mining Company 
 
 
 

Iron Range Resources 
P.O. Box 441 

4261 Highway 53 South 
Eveleth, Minnesota 55734-0441 
(218) 744-7400 • 800-765-5043 

Fax: (218)744-7403 
 

 
To: Sandy Layman 
 Commissioner 
 
From: Dan Jordan 
 Mining Programs Supervisor 
 
Date: May 21, 2008 
 
Re: NORTHSHORE MINING TACONITE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND PROJECT 

(PROD 2006, PAY 2007)  $1,547,563 
 
Minnesota Statutes 298.227, authorize grants to Minnesota’s taconite producers for acquisition 
of plant and stationary mining equipment and facilities for the producer or for research and 
development in Minnesota on new mining, or taconite, iron, or steel production technology, but 
only if the producer provides a matching expenditure to be used for the same purpose of at least 
50 percent of the distribution based on 14.7 cents per ton.  These funds are held in the Taconite 
Economic Development Fund. 
 
Effective for proposals for expenditures of money from the fund beginning May 26, 2007, the 
commissioner may not release the funds before the next scheduled meeting of the board.  If the 
board rejects a proposed expenditure, the funds must be deposited in the Taconite Environmental 
Protection Fund under sections 298.222 to 298.225. 
 
Project 1 – Reactivation of Concentrator Section 9 
 With the reactivation of Furnace 5 providing additional pellet production capacity, 
 additional concentrate sections will be required, since the eleven existing concentrate 
 sections do not have the capacity to supply Furnace 5 feed.  This requires the 
 refurbishment of two idle concentrator sections – sections 9 and 10.  These sections, 
 along with Furnace 5, have been idle since the early 80’s. 
 
 Furnace 5 provides an additional 800,000 of annual pellet capacity; each concentrator 
 section provides 400,000 tons of concentrate supply capacity. 
 
 TEDF Grant $1,547,563 
 Company      997,729 
 Estimated Project Total Cost $2,545,292 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

Page 11 

Hibbing Taconite Company 
 
 
 

Iron Range Resources 
P.O. Box 441 

4261 Highway 53 South 
Eveleth, Minnesota 55734-0441 
(218) 744-7400 • 800-765-5043 

Fax: (218)744-7403 
 

 
To: Sandy Layman 
 Commissioner 
 
From: Dan Jordan 
 Mining Programs Supervisor 
 
Date: May 21, 2008 
 
Re: HIBBING TACONITE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND PROJECTS  
 (PROD 2006, PAY 2007)  $2,445,674 
 
Minnesota Statutes 298.227, authorize grants to Minnesota’s taconite producers for acquisition 
of plant and stationary mining equipment and facilities for the producer or for research and 
development in Minnesota on new mining, or taconite, iron, or steel production technology, but 
only if the producer provides a matching expenditure to be used for the same purpose of at least 
50 percent of the distribution based on 14.7 cents per ton.  These funds are held in the Taconite 
Economic Development Fund. 
 
Effective for proposals for expenditures of money from the fund beginning May 26, 2007, the 
commissioner may not release the funds before the next scheduled meeting of the board.  If the 
board rejects a proposed expenditure, the funds must be deposited in the Taconite Environmental 
Protection Fund under sections 298.222 to 298.225. 
 
Project 1 – Mill #4 Discharge End Shell and Trunnion 
 

 An excessive amount of erosion wear to the interior of the mill shell has occurred due to 
 fine material finding its way under the mill liners and “racing” around the shell.  
 Replacing this shell along with a new design trunnion cast will eliminate the interior step 
 design which is the original cause of the wear.  This will restore the mill to full utility for 
 the life of the mine, which will enable maximum production scenarios with all mills 
 properly operating.  Since there is a long lead time of 50 weeks for replacement, a 
potential loss of at least 900,000 tons would occur on an annual basis if this mill were to 
break down. 

 
 TEDF Grant $1,754,823 
 Company  428,608 
 Project Total Cost $2,183,431 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Wednesday, July 16, 2008 

Page 12 

 
Project 2 – Mill #2 Gear Replacement 
 
 The main gear on mill #2 was installed in 1981 and gear inspections have revealed 
 problems with tooth wear, porosity issues and, recently, indications of spalling are 
 increasing.  This recent spalling and cracking have increased the vulnerability of 
 complete failure and the need for replacement.  Failure to replace this gear combined 
 with a failure of the gear would result in a loss of at least 870,000 tons on an annual 
 basis. 
  

TEDF Grant $690,851 
Company   854,802 
Estimated Project Total Cost $1,545,653 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

Strategic Framework 
 

Mission Statement 
 

Advance regional growth by stabilizing and enhancing the economy of 
northeastern Minnesota's Taconite Assistance Area. 

 
Vision Statement 

 
Iron Range Resources is a recognized leader of collaborative efforts 

that shape the economic future of the region. 
 

Values 
 

 Hope – belief that anything and everything is possible 
 Integrity – strength of character to do the right thing, as individuals and as an 

organization  
 Change – vision to see opportunity and the courage to act 
 Sisu – stamina, perseverance and tenacity to do what must be done, even in the 

face of adversity 
 
Principles   
 

 Commitment to our mission – we focus on what is important and do it well 
 Focus on our customers – our customers are at the center of every decision we 

make and every service we provide 
 Managing for results – we measure results and use the outcomes to guide 

decisions and direct our work 
 Improvements by innovation and collaboration – we use technology and new 

tools to improve our work  
 Investing in life-long learning – we develop our human resources and capacity 
 Advancing dialogue and solutions through convening – we shape the future 

through collaborative decision making 
 

Fiscal Year 2009 Strategies  
 Enhance relationships with customers 
 Maximize resources with the future in mind 
 Provide resources for businesses and communities 
 Develop and retain a motivated and skilled workforce 



 
 
 

Highlights from FY08  
 

Agency revives grants programs & community redevelopment, leads award-
winning regional partnership to advance big projects, addresses land use and 
workforce challenges, bolsters communications and reaches out to business.    

 
 Community Development 
 

New and innovative agency grant programs in FY08 fostered community growth, stimulated 
new economic activity, and enriched tourism and the quality of life across the service territory.  
Communities such as Aurora, Buhl, Biwabik, Chisholm, Coleraine, Cook, Embarrass, Eveleth, 
Ely, Gilbert, Grand Marais, Grand Rapids, Hibbing, Keewatin, LaPrairie, Marble, Nashwauk, 
Tower and Virginia received $6 million in public works funding for new infrastructure and 
health & safety projects. 
 
Commercial business infrastructure projects received $910,000 in funding. One of the projects 
was a $250,000 commercial infrastructure grant to facilitate the expansion of P&H Minepro in 
Virginia, which manufactures and refurbishes equipment for the mining industry.  And, in Two 
Harbors, a $50,000 Commercial Community Redevelopment project supported the demolition 
of the former Two Harbors High School, making way for a $3.5 million housing project. 
  
A new Culture and Tourism grants program established a competitive process that funded 18 
grants to support nonprofit projects such as production of a children’s opera, enhanced exhibits 
and interpretation. 
 
Historically one of the agency’s most visible programs, the Residential Community 
Redevelopment program ramped up, eliminating blight to make way for new development. 
During the eight weeks of operation in the fall of 2007, 17 buildings were razed. In 2008, 
approximately 80 buildings are scheduled to be taken down.  
 
Recognizing the growing demand for reliable, timely information, agency staff took a lead role in 
presentations to local communities and civic groups on the large scale development projects 
underway and on workforce and training needs. Communications staff videotaped key public 
meetings for viewing on public access television and joined in a partnership with Northeast 
Higher Education District colleges to produce a series of videos highlighting job availability and 
workforce training. Plans are to show the videos to area high school students to increase student 
awareness of the jobs and training available on the Iron Range. 
 
In late summer 2007, Iron Range Resources launched the Range Readiness Initiative, a 
partnership of regional business, community, economic development and government entities that 
are preparing communities for the opportunities and challenges associated with multiple large-
scale regional development projects. The initiative is collaborating to develop resources, perform 
housing assessments and address workforce, education, training, zoning and community issues. 



The agency also facilitated meetings which brought together top officials from each of the major 
economic development projects to discuss common needs. For its collaboration of more than 20 
regional organizations, the Range Readiness Initiative on June 18 will receive the prestigious 
Partnership Award from the Economic Development Association of Minnesota.  
 
With the replacement of about 75,000 retired workers required within the region over the next 
decade – and training for thousands of projected new jobs - the agency provided $500,000 for 
workforce development grants, leveraged through partnerships with area colleges and the 
Department of Employment and Economic Development. 
 
The Laurentian Vision Partnership (LVP), of which Iron Range Resources is a leader, launched 
a new website which communicates the mission and activities of transforming pits and piles into 
lakes and landscapes. The website includes a wide array of information on the development of 
productive post mining landscapes.  
 

 Business Development 
 
To a person, the 30 employees at CrossUSA’s software programming center in Eveleth say 
they’re happy to be working and recreating on the Iron Range. CrossUSA’s expansion at Progress 
Park was one of the projects that, with assistance from Iron Range Resources, created new jobs 
within the Taconite Assistance Area in 2008.   
 
Up the road in Ely, the agency provided a grant to the city of Ely for a Minnesota Department of 
Revenue expansion that created 28 new jobs.  Across the Taconite Assistance Area, by fiscal year 
end, approximately $4.6 million will have been invested in new business development.   
 
An agency loan helped construct a 30,000 square-foot industrial building owned by the 
Chisholm-Hibbing Airport Authority. The building is being marketed by Iron Range Resources in 
the Twin Cities Commercial Real Estate Guide. 
 
Agency staff worked closely with major proposed mining-related projects such as Mesabi 
Nugget, PolyMet Mining Corp, Minnesota Steel and Franconia Minerals, to advance project 
needs.  
 
Iron Range Resources took a leadership position in planning and supporting regional Life Science 
development. An action agenda was developed following the Seizing Opportunity: Forestry and 
the BioEconomy conference co-sponsored by Iron Range Resources and the Blandin Foundation 
last fall. The agency continues to partner with the Blandin Foundation, the Natural Resources and 
Research Institute, the BioBusiness Alliance of Minnesota and others to identify forest related 
opportunities in the bio-economy. 
 
Business developers, communities and the public are benefiting from the agency website at 
www.ironrangeresources.org, which was updated in FY08. Programming changes made to the 
website have improved access and communication for customers. Electronic information such 
as grant guidelines, grant & loan applications and agency news, are now available on the website 
at the click of a mouse. 

 
 
 
 

http://www.ironrangeresources.org/�


 Operations 
 
In Golf Digest’s “America’s 100 Greatest Public Golf Courses,” The Quarry secured the number 
one spot in Minnesota and the number 19 spot in the nation, while The Legend was ranked the 
number five course in Minnesota and the number 59 course in the nation. The courses attracted 
29,000 golfers. Five state high school and junior high tournaments were held at Giants Ridge, 
furthering the facility’s commitment to growing junior golf in northeastern Minnesota.   
 
Giants Ridge Golf and Ski Resort drew 93,000 skiers from across the state, nation and Canada. 
Following completion of an engineering study, the board approved $1.1 million for a snowmaking 
system upgrade. 
 
Through increased communication efforts, the Iron Range gained significant positive media 
exposure in media outlets such as American Metal Market, BBC World Current Affairs (British 
Broadcast Corporation), Commercial Real Estate Guide, Fedgazette, Minnesota Technology, 
North America Steel Business Briefing, Skillings Mining, Twin Cities Business magazine, Upper 
Peninsula Magazine (Michigan), Upsize Magazine, Business North, Minneapolis Star Tribune, 
Minnesota Daily, Minnesota Post, Minnesota Public Radio, WCCO, and KARE 11. 
 
With multiple large-scale projects proposed and existing iron mining companies expanding, the 
agency hired staff with expertise in land use planning to direct the Laurentian Vision 
Partnership. The agency also stepped up its communications capacity with the addition of an 
Information Officer position, thereby bolstering media relations, the in-house production of 
communication tools such as RangeView, a monthly Board Briefing, and agency literature. The 
Water Cooler, an in-house communication publication, also was initiated. 
 
And, finally, the agency is becoming more adept in its utilization of the Balanced Scorecard 
management tool.  The scorecard is used across divisions to coordinate and align operations with 
organizational goals and strategies.  Scorecard results are measured and tracked quarterly to 
monitor and evaluate progress toward intended targets.  A spring annual planning retreat involves 
all staff in updating the scorecard and planning for the new year. 
 
 
  
 
 
           
 
 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 1 

FY 2009 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Table of Contents 

 

INVESTMENT PLAN ...................................................................................................... 2 
AGENCY BUDGET ............................................................................................................. 2 
REVENUES ....................................................................................................................... 3 
EXPENDITURES ................................................................................................................ 4 
FUNDING SOURCES .......................................................................................................... 5 

OPERATIONS .................................................................................................................. 6 
A WORD ABOUT THE BALANCED SCORECARD ................................................................. 6 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIVISION ............................................................................. 7 

Administrative Services Operations Budget ............................................................... 8 
LEGAL SERVICES ............................................................................................................. 9 
MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS DIVISION ................................................................. 10 

Marketing & Communications Operations Budget .................................................. 11 
GIANTS RIDGE GOLF & SKI RESORT .............................................................................. 12 

Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort Operations Budget ................................................ 14 
IRONWORLD ................................................................................................................... 15 
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES DIVISION ........................................................................... 16 

Development Strategies Operations Budget ............................................................. 18 

PROGRAMS ................................................................................................................... 20 

GRANTS ......................................................................................................................... 20 
Community Readiness .............................................................................................. 20 
Mining and Mineland Reclamation .......................................................................... 21 
Commissioner Projects ............................................................................................. 21 
Innovative Technology ............................................................................................. 21 
Culture and Tourism ................................................................................................. 22 
Application Fund ...................................................................................................... 22 
Region III .................................................................................................................. 22 
Grants Budget ........................................................................................................... 23 

PROJECTS ...................................................................................................................... 24 

Public Works ............................................................................................................. 24 
Renewable Energy .................................................................................................... 24 
Business Development .............................................................................................. 24 
Projects Budget ......................................................................................................... 25 

RESERVES ..................................................................................................................... 26 

APPENDIX ...................................................................................................................... 27 

APPENDIX A  ORGANIZATIONAL CHART ........................................................................ 27 
APPENDIX B  PROPOSED FY09 MINELAND RECLAMATION AND RESTORATION PROJECTS
....................................................................................................................................... 28 

 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 2 

Investment Plan 

Agency Budget  

 
FY 2008 

Original Budget 
FY 2008 

Projected 
FY 2009 
Request 

Resources    
   Carryforward In $6,929,462 $13,134,627 $11,549,871 
    
   Current Resources:    
 Taconite Production Taxes $16,078,977 $16,078,977 $15,583,098 
 Investment Earnings 3,288,182 4,707,904 2,031,340 
 Loan Revenues 2,750,706 4,057,427 2,493,142 
 Facilities Revenue 5,454,309 4,540,257 5,005,137 
 Occupation Tax Region III 589,470 589,470 582,344 
        Subtotal Current Resources  $28,161,644 $29,974,035 $25,695,061 
Total Resources Available $35,091,106 $43,108,662 $37,244,932 
    
Expenditures     
Operations:    
 Administrative Services $2,673,302 $2,419,804 $2,653,791 
 Attorney General 387,647 315,864 374,238 
 Marketing & Communications 1,291,215 968,190 1,322,817 
 Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort  8,345,978 8,685,8044 8,275,6911 
 Ironworld  1,963,500 2,760,7604 1,650,0002 
 Development Strategies 1,808,016 1,444,999 2,075,183 
    
Programs:     
 Grants  3,150,000 2,781,400 2,900,000 
 Occupation Tax Region III 589,470 589,470 582,344 
    
Projects:    
   Development  7,952,516 5,592,5004 11,956,0413 
TOTAL FY INVESTMENT PLAN $28,161,644 $25,558,791 $31,790,105 
    
Reserves 6,000,000 6,000,000 3,993,2375 
    
Estimated Carryforward Out $929,462 $11,549,871 $1,461,590 
    
Notes:    
1Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort:    
 Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort Operations $6,370,786   
 Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort Debt Service 1,568,628   
 Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort Facility Improvements 336,277   
Total Giants Ridge  $8,275,691   
    
2Ironworld:    
 Ironworld Development Corp. –  Operations $1,261,000   
 Ironworld Development Corp. –  Endowment Match 250,000   
 Ironworld Building Insurance & Capital Improvements   139,000   
Total Ironworld $1,650,000   
    
3Includes $5,656,041 for Public Works, $1,000,000 for Renewable Energy  
and $5,300,000 for Business Development.     
    
4During FY08, the Iron Range Resources Board approved the 
following increases to the budget:    
    Giants Ridge – Snowmaking system $1,100,000   
    Ironworld – Capital Improvements 800,000   
    University of MN – Health Effects of Iron Mining Study 250,000   
    MN Humanities Center – Iron Range documentary 87,484   
 Total FY08 budget increase $2,237,484   
    
5Originated from Taconite Economic Development Fund (TEDF) projects not approved 
for funding at the May 21, 2008, meeting of the Iron Range Resources Board.   



Revenues   
$37.2 M 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 3 



Expenditures   
$31.8 M 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 4 



Funding Sources   
$31.8 M 
 
 
 

 
 

Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 5 



Operations 

A Word about the Balanced Scorecard 
 
The Balanced Scorecard creates a framework for seeing all the critical drivers of 
organizational change:  customers, employees, the work and financial performance.  The 
key to successful results is alignment of the BSC perspectives and, within them, 
alignment of employee participation – ensuring that everyone is making a contribution to 
the goal of the whole. 

Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 6 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 7 

Administrative Services Division 
 
Purpose of the division:  The Administrative Services Division provides support 
services and resources to other agency programs and facilities.  The division is comprised 
of: Finance & Human Resources, Information Systems and Maintenance & Shop.  The 
budget of this division also includes the Office of the Commissioner.  
 
How we do our work:  Division staff members provide numerous services including 
contracting, procurement, financial reporting, payroll and employee personnel. Staff also 
support and maintain the computer hardware, data and telecommunication infrastructure 
for the agency.  Other duties include equipment maintenance, fleet management and 
building/grounds maintenance.   
 
FY09 Strategies and Objectives  
 
1. Customers and Community - During FY09, the division will enhance relationships 
with customers by:    
 

• Assessing customer needs and quality of services  
• Providing for contingencies in critical service areas  
• Updating and communicating agency policies   

   
2. Finance - During FY09, the division will maximize resources with the future in mind 
by:   
 

• Increasing the scope of financial and programmatic reporting  
• Implementing “green” initiatives in recycling and power management    

   
3. Business Processes - During FY09, in order to meet the needs of our customers the 
division will increase effectiveness by:     
 

• Providing accurate and timely financial reports 
• Providing timely procurement services  
• Developing and implementing a comprehensive human resources plan  
• Upgrading the agency’s network infrastructure  
• Transitioning agency phone systems to Voice Over Internet Protocol (VOIP)  
• Operating and maintaining the Eveleth facility and beginning a window 

replacement plan  
 
4. Learning & Growth - During FY09, the division will develop and retain a motivated 
workforce by:   
 

• Promoting professional development and learning opportunities  
• Enhancing internal communications   



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 8 

Administrative Services Operations Budget 
 

Finance & Human Resources FY 2008 
Budget 

FY 2008 
Projected 

FY 2009 
Budget 

Employee Costs $970,547 $998,769 $999,560
Operational Costs $149,700 $102,628 $170,200
 Training and travel 44,500 35,708 49,500
 Supplies  26,000 21,300 26,500
 Purchased services  10,000 6,001 10,000
 Telephone and postage 47,500 26,691 47,500
 Equipment, rental and leases 21,700 12,928 36,700
State Indirect Costs $192,000 $167,428 $95,000
Human Resources $365,536 $273,190 $363,200
Total  $1,677,783 $1,542,015 $1,627,960
 
 

Information Systems FY 2008 
Budget 

FY 2008 
Projected 

FY 2009 
Budget 

Employee Costs $143,300 $143,601 $155,270
Operational Costs $252,785 $179,300 $303,200
 Maintenance and network services 48,900 28,618 66,200
 Hardware, software and support 160,300 97,156 150,500
 Supplies 23,585 19,359 73,500
 Training and travel 20,000 34,167 13,000
Total  $396,085 $322,901 $458,470
 
 

Maintenance & Shop FY 2008 
Budget 

FY 2008 
Projected 

FY 2009 
Budget 

Maintenance & Shop – Employee Costs $198,014 $198,402 $208,381
Building & Grounds 280,500 260,439 228,240
Equipment Repair 120,920 96,047 130,740
Total  $599,434 $554,888 $567,361
 
 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 9 

Legal Services 
 
The Attorney General’s Office provides legal services to the agency and the Board in 
support of all agency activities. 
 
Two assistant attorneys general and one legal assistant provide the Commissioner, agency 
staff and the Board with counsel on legal matters, including statutory interpretation, 
drafting or interpretation of legal documents, drafting of legislative language and defense 
of the agency or Board in litigation.   
 

Legal Services FY 2008 
Budget 

FY 2008 
Projected 

FY 2009 
Budget 

Legal Services $387,647 $315,864 $374,238
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 10 

Marketing & Communications Division 
 
Purpose of the division: The Marketing & Communications Division develops, 
coordinates and disseminates marketing, promotional and communications materials on 
behalf of Iron Range Resources and its stakeholders.  
 
How we do our work:  Working as a team, division staff members create and distribute 
internal and external agency communications, manage the agency website, provide 
writing and design services and provide staff support for special events and strategic 
initiatives. 
 
FY09 Strategies and Objectives: 
 
1. Customers and Community - During FY09, the division will enhance relationships 
with customers by: 
 

• Recording for broadcast programs about agency projects and activities  
• Evaluating and improving the results of marketing and communication initiatives 
• Providing timely communications    

 
2. Finance - During FY09, the division will maximize resources with the future in mind 
by:   
 

• Leveraging resources through partnerships 
• Managing administrative expenses through equipment acquisition planning   

    
3. Business Processes - During FY09, in order to meet the needs of our customers, the 
division will increase effectiveness by: 
 

• Marketing the region by identifying media opportunities and additional venues for 
promoting the region 

• Expanding web site capacity for e-business   
• Creating, managing and administering agency-wide databases  
• Cultivating and enhancing regional culture and tourism   
• Initiating partnership opportunities to advance the region’s growth 
• Launching intranet electronic communications  

 
4. Learning & Growth - During FY09, the division will develop and retain a motivated 
and skilled workforce by: 
 

• Promoting professional development and life-long learning 
• Enhancing internal communications  



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 11 

Marketing & Communications Operations Budget 
 

Marketing & Communications  FY 2008 
Budget 

FY 2008 
Projected 

FY 2009 
Budget 

Employee Costs $479,415 $497,012 $583,697
Operational Costs $811,800 $471,178 $739,120
            Printing 91,200 63,962 114,000
            Advertising 295,000 226,000 254,000
 Professional services 350,250 104,120 291,000
 Purchased services 24,500 13,042 26,000
 Training, travel and supplies  50,850 64,054 54,120
Total  $1,291,215 $968,190 $1,322,817
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 12 

Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort 
 
Purpose of the division:  Giants Ridge Golf and Ski Resort operates a quality 
recreational golf and ski facility and offers private-sector opportunities for property and 
real estate development.  
 
How we do our work:  Giants Ridge operates 36 holes of championship golf and a 
winter sports area that attracts over 130,000 guests annually.  In addition, the Giants 
Ridge recreation area is comprised of 10,000 acres of lands of which Iron Range 
Resources owns 1,600 acres.  A Master Plan for the Giants Ridge area was built on the 
premise that the agency will focus on oversight and land sales to private parties who will 
drive future development.  The plan serves as the blueprint for residential and 
commercial growth, calling for one billion dollars in private sector investment over the 
next ten to twenty years. Annual economic impacts to surrounding communities are 
projected to exceed $50 million by 2010, and upon full build out, annual tax revenues to 
local governments could exceed $10 million. 
                                           
FY09 Strategies and Objectives 
 
1. Customers and Community - During FY09, the division will enhance relationships 
with customers by:     
 

• Packaging promotions to build target audiences and increase revenues mid-week  
• Responding to customer survey and evaluation feedback with continuous 

improvement    
   
2. Finance - During FY09, the division will maximize resources with the future in mind 
by:    
 

• Increasing revenues with competitive pricing and packaging  
• Tying strategic capital and infrastructure investments to revenue  

   
3. Business Processes - During FY09, to meet the needs of our customers, the division 
will increase effectiveness by:      
 

• Operating and maintaining the Giants Ridge facilities and continuing to 
implement improvements 

• Upgrading the snowmaking system  
• Implementing a new point-of-sale system for golf and food operations  
• Developing a “green” assessment and plan for golf and ski  
• Cultivating collaborative marketing efforts  

 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 13 

4. Learning & Growth - During FY09, the division will develop and retain a motivated 
and skilled workforce by:   
 

• Maximizing the training benefits of regional and national golf and ski 
organizations  

• Promoting industry networking among professional staff  
• Conducting site visits to similar resorts   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort Operations Budget 
 
Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort FY 2008 

Budget 
FY 2008 

Projected 
FY 2009 
Budget 

Revenues  
Admissions $3,137,284 $2,877,986 $3,114,867
Advertising & Marketing Sales 53,256 59,918 64,603
Commissions 18,118 19,000 17,687
Facility Rental 140,347 129,014 139,502
Retail Sales 1,272,470 1,148,925 1,272,064
Equipment Rental 200 859 200
Miscellaneous Revenue 642,637 56,739 206,217
Total Revenues $5,264,312 $4,292,441 $4,815,140
  
Expenses  
Salaries & Benefits $1,469,599 $1,400,873 $1,447,538
Utilities 250,009 270,266 281,414
Advertising & Marketing 388,670 334,107 361,740
Communications 112,961 158,202 125,443
General & Administrative 650 1,822 5,001
Equipment Rental 127,480 85,965 128,936
Management Fees 102,720 75,168 77,592
Professional Services 97,550 77,841 173,765
Expense Reimbursements 2,804,291 2,577,199 3,067,755
Other Professional Services 6,000 8,000 0
Insurance 102,629 98,936 100,663
Maintenance & Repairs 99,964 64,558 160,040
Supplies 174,234 225,346 220,040
Travel 31,919 2,315 5,000
Purchased Services 181,937 170,574 215,859
Total Operational Expenses $5,950,613 $5,551,172 $6,370,786
  
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenses ($686,301) ($1,258,731) ($1,555,646)
  
Non Operational Expenses  
Equipment $300,200 $158,037 $232,000
Capital Improvements / Leases 534,277 1,442,8791

 

 104,277
Debt Service  1,560,888 1,533,716 1,568,628
Total Non Operational Expenses $2,395,365 $3,134,632 $1,904,905
  
Total Expenditures $8,345,978 $8,685,804 $8,275,691
  
Budget Surplus (Shortage) ($3,081,666) ($4,393,363) ($3,460,551)

Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 14 

                                                 
1 In FY08, this budget line item was increased $1,100,000 for a snowmaking system. 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 15 

Ironworld  
 
The nonprofit Ironworld Development Corporation (IDC) manages the agency’s facilities 
at Ironworld under a Sublease/Management Agreement. IDC’s mission is to “collect, 
preserve, interpret and promote the history and cultural heritage of northeastern 
Minnesota; and to manage, promote, sustain and develop the assets of Ironworld for the 
long-term benefit of area residents and visitors.” 
 
The Sublease/Management Agreement provides an annual operating subsidy that declines 
by 20% per year over a ten-year period, the interest on a $10 million dollar endowment 
and a $250,000 challenge grant for endowment fund raising. In addition to these financial 
terms, the agency budgets for insurance and capital repairs.     
   
 

Ironworld  FY 2008 
Budget 

FY 2008 
Projected 

FY 2009 
Budget 

IDC Operating  $1,576,000 $1,576,000 $1,261,000
Endowment Challenge Match 250,000 250,000 250,000
Building Insurance  37,500 38,946 39,000
Building Capital Improvements  100,000 895,8142

 100,000
Total  $1,963,500 $2,760,760 $1,650,000
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
2 In FY08, this budget line item was increased $800,000 for capital improvements. 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 16 

Development Strategies Division 
 

Purpose of the division:  The Development Strategies Division manages agency deal 
flow, provides financial assistance to businesses, invests in communities through grant 
making and improves the physical landscape impacted by mining activities within the 
Taconite Assistance Area (TAA).  The division consists of: Business Development & 
Recruitment, Strategic Results & Workforce and Mining & Mineland Reclamation.  The 
budget of this division also includes the Building Demolition operations.   
 
How we do our work:  Division staff members generate business leads and provide 
financial support to new and existing businesses. The division also assists communities 
by providing infrastructure financing for business development and funding for property 
redevelopment. Competitive grant programs are offered to stimulate community growth. 
Staff conduct strategic planning, evaluation and results management throughout the 
agency. Special projects and initiatives tied to workforce are also undertaken. Other 
activities include insuring the long-term utilization of Minnesota’s mineral resources and 
undertaking reclamation planning efforts.  
 
FY09 Strategies and Objectives 
 
1. Customers and Community - During FY09, the division will enhance relationships 
with customers by: 
 

• Responding to written and verbal inquiries within targeted time-frames 
• Evaluating customer satisfaction 
• Providing timely document execution 
• Securing qualified developers of amenities that add value to Giants Ridge 
• Communicating agency results to the public 
• Providing tools and resources to businesses and industries in order to help fulfill 

workforce needs  
 
2. Finance - During FY09, the division will maximize resources with the future in mind 
by:   
 

• Leveraging the financial assistance of grant and development projects   
• Managing loan portfolio risk ratings and delinquency ratios 

 
3. Business Processes - During FY09, the division will provide resources for businesses 
and communities by: 
 

• Identifying new participation opportunities 
• Developing and implementing a targeted business recruitment plan  
• Assisting businesses and tracking job creation and retention for businesses 

receiving agency assistance 
• Removing blight in communities by operating a residential demolition program 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 17 

• Supporting readiness efforts and community growth through convening and grant 
making 

• Influencing mining processes to create enhanced post mining landscapes 
• Identifying workforce grant and partnership opportunities 
• Developing communities through grant making  

  
4. Learning & Growth - During FY09, the division will develop and retain a motivated 
and skilled workforce by: 
   

• Promoting professional development and life-long learning 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 18 

 
Development Strategies Operations Budget 
 

Business Development & Recruitment FY 2008 
Budget 

FY 2008 
Projected 

FY 2009 
Budget 

Employee Costs  $759,772 $688,907 $832,364
Operational Costs $138,330 $64,569 $314,740
            Training and travel 64,700 35,994 57,200
 Professional services 30,250 5,000 177,800
 Purchased services 17,600 5,937 26,200
 Memberships 13,000 11,408 15,000
 Supplies, telephone and equipment 12,780 6,230 22,100
 Utilities and maintenance  0 0 16,440
Total  $898,102 $753,476 $1,147,104
 
 

Recruitment  FY 2008 
Budget 

FY 2008 
Projected 

FY 2009 
Budget 

Employee Costs  $264,910 $215,711 $0
Operational Costs $93,520 $47,150 0
            Training and travel 31,700 18,104 0
 Professional services 5,400 400 0
 Purchased services 15,900 13,064 0
 Memberships 3,000 0 0
 Supplies, telephone and equipment  8,800 8,762 0
 Utilities and maintenance  28,720 6,820 0
Total  $358,430 $262,861 $03

 
 

Strategic Results & Workforce  FY 2008 
Budget 

FY 2008 
Projected 

FY 2009 
Budget 

Employee Costs  $0 $0 $245,249
Operational Costs 0 0 $30,200
            Training and travel 0 0 15,100
 Professional services 0 0 10,800
 Memberships 0 0 300
 Supplies, telephone and equipment  0 0 4,000
Total  $0 $0 $275,4494

 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                 
3 In FY09, the budget for Recruitment was moved to Business Development & Recruitment. 
4 In FY09, Strategic Results & Workforce is a new operations budget. 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 19 

 
Mining & Mineland Reclamation  FY 2008 

Budget 
FY 2008 

Projected 
FY 2009 
Budget 

Employee Costs  $403,374 $343,232 $340,453
Operational Costs $148,110 $85,430 $112,790
            Training and travel 21,740 19,023 6,100
 Purchased services 7,500 3,779 5,200
 Memberships 11,310 6,341 10,750
 Supplies, telephone and equipment  44,940 1,774 29,260
 Utilities and maintenance  62,620 54,513 61,480
Total  $551,484 $428,662 $453,243

 
Building Demolition  FY 2008 

Budget 
FY 2008 

Projected 
FY 2009 
Budget 

Employee Costs  $0 $0 $122,287
Operational Costs $0 $0 $77,100
            Training and travel 0 0 500
 Purchased services 0 0 500
 Supplies, telephone and equipment  0 0 73,100
 Utilities and maintenance  0 0 3,000
Total  $0 $0 $199,3875

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
5 In FY09, Building Demolition is a new operations budget. 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 20 

Programs 

Grants 
 
Iron Range Resources is one of the region’s largest grant makers to units of government, 
nonprofits, higher education and businesses. This budget demonstrates an on-going 
commitment to grant making in order to foster community growth and stimulate 
economic and cultural activity.      
 
Grants include both competitive and noncompetitive application reviews. A competitive 
process involves a cycle with a call for proposals, an application deadline and published 
evaluation criteria. In the noncompetitive process, applications are received throughout 
the year and are individually evaluated using broader, general criteria.  
 
Program descriptions and allocations are described below. In accordance with M.S. 
298.22, Subd.11, the Commissioner will not bring specific grant projects back to the Iron 
Range Resources Board for approval.  
 
Community Readiness  $1,100,000 
 

Commercial Redevelopment  $500,000 (Competitive) 
A total of $500,000 is designated for cities or townships for the demolition and 
removal of commercial structures that make way for new development or new 
business. Competitive grants of up to $50,000 are available for eligible 
government entities. 

 
Workforce Development  $250,000  
Grants assist in workforce development by funding programs from industry, 
industry clusters, schools or collaborative partners that build capacity, 
responsiveness or innovation to address workforce needs.  Funding is also 
available for secondary and post secondary educational institutions to develop and 
deliver curriculum that prepares students for a seamless transition from high 
school or post secondary education to the workforce.  
 
Range Readiness  $350,000     
These grants are targeted for a coordinated regional readiness response to the 
large scale industry expansions and their attendant impacts on workforce, 
employment, housing, education, recreation and other socio-economic issues. An 
on-going communications effort will be developed and sustained to coordinate 
and share information with communities and other stakeholders as these evolving 
projects unfold. This initiative will identify potential challenges, issues and 
opportunities, develop shared strategies and solutions, and focus the appropriate 
financial and technical resources in an efficient and effective response.  
 
 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 21 

 
Mining and Mineland Reclamation  $900,000 
 
 Mineland Reclamation and Restoration  $625,000 (Competitive) 
 Grants in this category are for reclaiming, restoring and enhancing eligible areas 
 of the Taconite Assistance Area adversely affected by past mining activities.  
 Local units of government, reclamation committees and county mine inspectors 
 may submit projects for competitive review and consideration.  Please see the 
 Appendix on page 28 for a listing of proposed FY09 projects. 
 
 Laurentian Vision  $225,000 
 Staffed and led by Iron Range Resources, the Laurentian Vision Partnership 
 (LVP) is a collaborative of public agencies, local communities, mining companies 
 and others.  The LVP mission is to “transform pits and piles to living lakes and 
 landscapes, creating a legacy for the future.”  LVP also provides an optimum 
 venue that permits open discussion on how mining companies can systematically 
 incorporate innovative land designs into their daily operations. 
 
 In FY09, $125,000 is allocated for the Innovation Grant program and $100,000 
 for LVP sub-regional group projects and collaborative efforts: 
 

 Innovation Grants  $125,000 (Competitive) 
A total of $125,000 allocated for Laurentian Vision Innovation grants for 
collaborations between mining companies and communities.  Criteria include 
exploration of future uses for mining disturbed lands, solving public safety 
issues that arise from public use of private mine lands, and planning, design 
and implementation of land development projects.  

 
 Partnership Grant  $100,000 

A $100,000 sustaining grant to support the strategies of the LVP:  community 
and regional visioning, land design workshops (charrettes), Geographic 
Information System (GIS) mapping, and other efforts. 

 
Mining and Minerals  $50,000 
Mining and minerals grants are for activities that promote and support mining in 
Minnesota.  Grants also fund activities that encourage the production and use of 
value added iron products and stimulate the exploration and development of our 
non-ferrous minerals. 

 
Commissioner Projects  $500,000 
Grants under the Commissioner’s Discretionary Fund allow the agency to respond 
quickly to emergency situations or to support development opportunities that may not 
meet other program requirements.  The Commissioner will provide quarterly reports to 
the Board on grant awards. 
 
Innovative Technology  $200,000  
In FY09, Innovative Technology grants will be used to advance the agency’s work in 
growing a knowledge-based economy in the areas of renewable energy and biomaterials.  



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 22 

Iron Range Resources is taking a lead role in the establishment of a BioBusiness 
Resource Network in northeastern Minnesota.  Partners in this endeavor include the 
BioBusiness Alliance of Minnesota, Natural Resources and Research Institute and the 
Blandin Foundation.   
 
Culture and Tourism  $150,000 (Competitive) 
This program for nonprofits identifies initiatives unique to our region that strategically 
utilize cultural resources to stimulate tourism and enrich communities through artistic, 
heritage-related or recreational events. Culture and Tourism grants of up to $10,000 will 
be awarded for activities that improve the quality of life and generate economic returns.  
 
Application Fund  $50,000 
The Application Fund provides funding of up to $3,500 for communities and businesses. 
Grants may be used to pay up to half the cost of preparing an application for financial 
support from another state, federal or private grant program.  
  
Region III  $582,344 
M.S. 298.17 authorizes Koochiching and Carlton County (Region III) grants from 
occupation taxes for economic and environmental development projects:   
• The allocation is equal to the amount that would have been generated by a 1.5-cent 

tax imposed on each taxable ton for the preceding production year.   
• The amount for both counties in FY08 was $589,470 from which Iron Range 

Resources was reimbursed $14,000 for costs of administering the fund.   
• By law, one-third of the portion allocated for Koochiching County must be used to 

fund the Koochiching County Economic Development Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 23 

Grants Budget  
 

Grants FY 2008 
Budget 

FY 2008 
Projected 

FY 2009 
Budget 

Community Readiness   $1,600,000 $1,474,150 $1,100,000
     Commercial Redevelopment  1,000,000 889,150 500,000
     Workforce Development  500,000 500,000 250,000
     Range Readiness 100,000 85,000 350,000
Mining and Mineland Reclamation    $900,000 $759,000 $900,000
     Mineland Reclamation and Restoration 500,000 435,000 625,000
     Laurentian Vision  350,000 280,000 225,000
     Mining and Minerals  50,000 44,000 50,000
Commissioner Projects $250,000 $245,000 $500,000
Innovative Technology  $250,000 $176,000 $200,000
Culture & Tourism $100,000 $100,000 $150,000
Application Fund  $50,000 $27,250 $50,000
Total  $3,150,000 $2,781,400 $2,900,000
 
 
 

Region III Grant – Carlton/Koochiching FY 2008 
Budget 

FY 2008 
Projected 

FY 2009 
Budget 

Region III  $589,470 $589,470 $582,344
 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 24 

Projects 
 
Iron Range Resources provides funding for a variety of community and economic 
development projects, as further described below.  The Commissioner will bring specific 
projects to the Iron Range Resources Board for its approval at future meetings in 
accordance with M.S. 298.22, Subd. 2 (Board Account); M.S. 298.223, Subd. 2 (Taconite 
Environmental Protection Fund); and M.S. 298.296, Subd. 1 (Douglas J. Johnson 
Economic Protection Trust Fund).    
 
Public Works  $5,656,041 

 
Public Works   $4,656,041 (Competitive) 
Public Works grants fund the infrastructure needs of local units of government in 
order to support community and economic development. Eligible projects are 
publicly owned infrastructure, including wastewater collection and treatment, 
drinking water, storm sewers, utility extensions, site improvement and streets.  
Individual grant awards typically do not exceed $350,000.  

 
Community Business Infrastructure  $1,000,000  
Community Business Infrastructure grants fund capital expenses for public 
infrastructure supporting the expansion or creation of new development, the 
creation or retention of jobs, or projects that increase the tax base.  Eligible 
businesses are manufacturing, technology, warehousing and distribution, or 
research and development.  Individual grant awards typically do not exceed 
$350,000.   

 
Renewable Energy  $1,000,000  
Iron Range Resources has supported the growth of bioenergy initiatives by funding 
studies, providing loans and grants for specific projects, and in FY08, co-convening with 
the Blandin Foundation a well attended summit, “Seizing Opportunity:  Forestry and the 
Bioeconomy.”  In FY09, the agency proposes to accelerate progress in the field of 
bioenergy by specifically targeting projects that will utilize biomass, cellulosic and other 
feedstocks.  Wind, biodiesel, hydrogen, solar, and geothermal projects would also be 
eligible.  Project applications will be solicited from both the private and public sectors. 
 
Business Development  $5,300,000 
A total of $5,300,000 is designated for economic development projects to promote 
business development opportunities and attract new investments to the region. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 25 

Projects Budget  
 
Development Projects FY 2008 

Budget 
FY 2008 
Projected 

FY 2009 
Budget 

Public Works $6,000,0006 $6,000,000 $4,656,0417

Community Business Infrastructure 1,000,000 910,000 1,000,000
Renewable Energy 0 0 1,000,000
Business Development  6,952,516 4,682,5008

 5,300,000
Total Development Projects $13,952,516 $11,592,500 $11,956,041
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
6 In FY08, Public Works was budgeted under Reserves. 
7 On June 16, 2008, the agency received its share of the EVTAC bankruptcy settlement proceeds totaling 
$1,312,082.  By law, this money is directed 50% to the TEPF ($656,041) and 50% to the DJJ Trust Fund 
Corpus ($656,041).  The TEPF share of the settlement proceeds has been included in the FY09 Public 
Works line item. 
8 In FY08, this line item was increased $337,484 for University of MN – Health Effects of Iron Mining 
Study ($250,000) and Minnesota Humanities Center – Iron Range documentary ($87,484).   



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 26 

Reserves 
 
The reserve represents a change in statute during the 2008 legislative session.  Under the 
new provision, if the Iron Range Resources Board rejects a proposed Taconite Economic 
Development Fund (TEDF) expenditure, the funds are deposited in the Taconite 
Environmental Protection Fund in accordance with M.S. sections 298.222 to 298.225.  
 
At the May 21, 2008 meeting of the Iron Range Resources Board, two TEDF projects 
totaling $3,393,237 were not approved for funding. These funds have been set aside by 
the agency for future projects.  
 
 
 



APPENDIX  

Appendix A  Organizational Chart 
 

Commissioner

Deputy 
Commissioner

Administrative 
Services

Development 
Strategies Giants Ridge

Laurentian Vision & 
Lands Coordinator

Workforce 
Coordinator

Marketing & 
Communications

Strategic Results 
Management

Iron Range 
Resources Board 

Members
Assistant Attorney 

Generals

 

Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 27 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 28 

Appendix B  Proposed FY09 Mineland Reclamation and 
Restoration Projects 
 
Emergency Safety Projects       $15,000 
The St. Louis County Mine Inspector’s office monitors and inspects abandoned mine pits 
to address safety issues and emergencies.  In FY08, activities included initial work on 
cleanup of the Carlz Mine Shop’s leaking underground fuel storage tanks. 
 
Fish Stocking         $10,000 
In partnership with the DNR Division of Fisheries, the Mineland Reclamation Program 
operates a cooperative program to stock fish in a number of water-filled, abandoned mine 
pits across the region from Ely to Crosby-Ironton.  Iron Range Resources stocks pits on 
the Mesabi Range where campground and public access construction has been funded by 
the agency.  Rainbow trout are stocked during the spring and fall at the following 
locations:  St. James Pit, Aurora; Lake Ore-Be-Gone, Gilbert; Mott Pit, Mountain Iron; 
Kinney Pit, Kinney; Judson Pit, Buhl; and La Rue Pit, Nashwauk. 
 
Aurora  -  St. James Mine Pit Wall Reshaping    $80,000 
This is a continuation of the project to reshape the St. James Mine Pit wall.  This section 
of pit wall is located on the northeast corner of the mine pit and is about one acre in size.   
 
Buhl  -  Stubler Pit Residential Lot Development    $70,000 
This project involves the addition of 19 residential lots adjacent to the Stubler Mine Pit.  
Since 1999, over 50 residential lots, two large homes for the handicapped, a new bank 
building, and a nursing home have been developed in Buhl.  This project also supports 
and promotes the Laurentian Vision Partnership by exemplifying successful Mineland 
Reclamation efforts that promote productive new uses of former mining landscapes.  
Total project cost:  $506,000.  Other funding sources:  City of Buhl - $250,000 and 
Mineland Reclamation FY07 & FY08 budget - $180,000.  This year’s $70,000 will 
increase the agency’s overall funding to $250,000, which is 50% of this project.   
 
Crow Wing County  -  Milford Mine Memorial Park   $50,000 
The Milford Mine Memorial Park honors the 41 miners who died in the worst mine 
disaster in state history.  This project continues Phase I work, including roadway 
expansion, parking lot development and construction of a handicapped accessible  
outdoor restroom. Total Phase I costs are $313,000, of which Crow Wing County will 
fund $100,000.  The agency funded $7,500 of planning and design work in FY07 and 
$50,000 of Phase I costs in FY08.   
 
Ely  -  Miner’s Dry Building Repairs     $40,000 
This is a continuation of the work that has been periodically taking place to restore the 
Miner’s Dry Building.  Repairs in this phase include the installation of electrical 
equipment to bring the fire sprinkler system into compliance with the fire code, 
replacement of the flooring and installation of acoustical tile for sound control.  The 
project cost is $61,000, and the City of Ely is providing the labor.   
 



Iron Range Resources  
FY 2009 Investment Plan 

Thursday, August 28, 2008  
Page 29 

Gilbert  -  Slope Stability Analysis      $80,000 
The City of Gilbert will conduct a slope stability analysis of some of the Lake Ore-Be-
Gone mine pit wall.  The city proposes to extend Minnesota Avenue to end on the 
peninsula that extends out into Lake Ore-Be-Gone.  There is concern regarding the 
stability of the existing soils, how steep the banks can be and general overall safety in this 
area.  This study will address and answer these questions before any additional time and 
funds are used to develop the area. 
 
Keewatin  -  Carlz Mine Soil Cleanup     $200,000 
The underground fuel storage tanks at the Carlz Mine Shop area have been leaking for a 
few years.  The City of Keewatin owns the site and is responsible for the cleanup, which 
will cost about $1,075,000.  The Petrofund will cover 85% of costs, and Iron Range 
Resources is requested to fund $200,000 to clean up this abandoned mineland site. 
 
Nashwauk  -  Campground Additional Sites    $80,000 
This project will complete the water and sewer service to the RV stalls that currently do 
not have these services.  This will ensure safe drinking water for users and safe 
wastewater disposal. The project will also enhance recreational opportunities in the City 
of Nashwauk along with an enhancement to lands that were previously disturbed by 
mining activity.  Project components will include construction of water, sewer and 
electric service to six existing RV stalls and construction of additional enhancements to 
the tent campground area, which all are located on land that was used in the past for 
mining.  The estimated project cost is $126,000. 
 
              TOTAL:  $625,000  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda
	Approval of the June 19, 2008, Minutes
	FY09 Agency Investment Plan
	Taconite Economic Development Fund
	Northshore Mining Company
	Hibbing Taconite Company

	FY09 Investment Plan 20080828 (3).pdf
	Investment Plan Introductory Pages 09
	FY09 Investment Plan
	Investment Plan
	Agency Budget 
	Revenues  
	Expenditures  
	Funding Sources  

	Operations
	A Word about the Balanced Scorecard
	Administrative Services Division
	Administrative Services Operations Budget

	Legal Services
	Marketing & Communications Division
	Marketing & Communications Operations Budget

	Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort
	Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort Operations Budget

	Ironworld 
	Development Strategies Division
	Development Strategies Operations Budget


	Programs
	Grants
	Grants Budget 


	Projects
	Projects Budget 

	Reserves
	APPENDIX 
	Appendix A  Organizational Chart
	Appendix B  Proposed FY09 Mineland Reclamation and Restoration Projects




